
 
 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

Hamilton High School Library/Zoom/Facebook Live 
620 Canal Street, Hamilton City, CA 95951 

Wednesday, April 24, 2024 
www.husdschools.org  

 
5:30 p.m.  Public session for purposes of opening the meeting only  
5:30 p.m.  Closed session to discuss closed session items listed below (For Board Only) 
6:00 p.m. Reconvene to open session no later than 6:30 p.m.  

 

Hamilton Unified School District Board Meetings are open to the public. Please join the meeting by attending in 
person or via the livestream on Facebook Live on the District’s Facebook Group page or through the below Zoom 
link or dial by phone as listed below: 

 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/4968739639?pwd=RUw1Qk5hZFVNTHd3RVFuMm9tVDBCQT09  
 
Meeting ID: 496 873 9639 
Passcode: 123456789     
 
Dial by phone: 
        +1 669 900 6833 US  
Meeting ID: 496 873 9639 
Passcode: 123456789 

 
1.0 OPENING BUSINESS: 

a. Call to order and roll call 
 

_______Hubert “Wendell” Lower, President  _______Rod Boone, Clerk   _______Gabriel Leal 
_______Genaro Reyes    _______Ray Odom 

 
2.0 IDENTIFY CLOSED SESSION ITEMS: 

 
3.0 PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS: Public comment will be heard on any closed session items. The board 

may limit comments to no more than three minutes per speaker and 15 minutes per item. 
 

4.0 ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION: To consider qualified matters. 
a. Government Code Section 54957, Personnel Issue. To consider public employee, evaluation, reassignment, 

resignation, release, dismissal, or discipline of a classified and/or certificated employee. 
b. Government Code Section 54957.6, Labor Negotiations. To confer with the District’s Labor Negotiator, 

Superintendent Jeremy Powell regarding HTA and CSEA negotiations. 
c. Conference with labor Negotiator Gov. Code sec. 54957.6, subd. (a). Agency designated representative: Dr. 

Jeremy Powell; Employee Organization: Hamilton Teachers Association. 
d. Public Employee Performance Evaluation. Government Code section 54957, subdivision (b)(1). Superintendent. 

 
Report out action taken in closed session. 

 
5.0 PUBLIC SESSION/FLAG SALUTE:   

 

Page 1 of 199

http://www.husdschools.org/
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/4968739639?pwd=RUw1Qk5hZFVNTHd3RVFuMm9tVDBCQT09


6.0 ADOPT THE AGENDA: (M) 
 

7.0   COMMUNICATIONS/REPORTS: 
a. Board Member Comments/Reports 
b. ASB President and Student Council President Reports 

i. Hamilton High School – Hanne Porter  
ii. Hamilton Elementary School – Dalila Barron-Martinez 

c. District Reports (written) 
i. Technology Report by Frank James (p. 4) 

ii. Nutrition Services Report by Erendida Moreno (p. 5) 
iii. Operations Report by Alan Joksch (p. 6) 

d. Principal and Dean of Student Reports (written) 
i. Ulises Tellechea, Hamilton Elementary School Principal (p. 7) 

ii. Maria Reyes, District Dean of Students (handout) 
iii. Cris Oseguera, Hamilton High School Principal (p. 9) 
iv. Silvia Robles, Adult School (p. 10) 

e. Chief Business Official Report by Kristen Hamman (written) (p. 11) 
f. Superintendent Report by Jeremy Powell (written) (p. 12) 

 
8.0  PRESENTATIONS: 

a. None 
 

9.0  CORRESPONDENCE: 
a. None 

 

10.0   INFORMATION ITEMS: 
a. HUSD Enrollment History for 6 years (p. 13) 
b. Bond Status: Fund 21 Update  (p. 15) 
c. LCAP/Strategic Planning (Handout) 

 

11.0   DISCUSSION ITEMS: 
a. Board Member Participation in End-of-Year Activities: 

i. Glenn County Educators’ Hall of Fame Awards – Monday, May 8th at 6:00 p.m. at Success Square 
Conference Room in Orland 

ii. HHS Awards Night –  Tuesday, May 29th at 6:00 p.m. pm in the gym 
iii. HES Promotion – Thursday, June 6th at 7:00 p.m. at the highschool stadium 
iv. HHS Graduation – Friday, June 7th at 8:00 p.m. at the highschool stadium 

 
12.0   PUBLIC COMMENT: Public comment on any item of interest to the public that is within the Board’s jurisdiction will be 

heard (agenda and non-agenda items). The Board may limit comments to no more than three minutes per speaker and 
15 minutes per topic. Public comment will also be allowed on each specific action item prior to board action thereon. 

 
13.0   ACTION ITEMS: 

a. Selection of HUSD 2023-24 Hall of Fame Inductee  (handout) 
b. Review and Select New District Logo (handout) 
c. Authorize Four 10-hour day work weeks for Admin Assistants June through August 2024 (p. 16) 
d. Accept 2022-23 Measure F Bond Building Fund Audit Report (p. 18) 
e. Accept 2022-23 Audit Report (p. 42) 
f. Authorize ELOP Funded Upgrades for the Elementary Outdoor Fitness Exercise Equipment (p. 133) 
g. Authorize Purchase of Convection Oven from NorCal Food Equipment Inc. for High School Cafeteria using KIT 

Funds (p. 145) 
 

14.0   CONSENT AGENDA: Items in the consent agenda are considered routine and are acted upon by the Board in one 
motion.  There is no discussion of these items prior to the Board vote and unless a member of the Board, staff, or public 
request specific items be discussed and/or removed from the consent agenda. Each item on the consent agenda 
approved by the Board shall be deemed to have been considered in full and adopted as recommended. 

Page 2 of 199



a. Minutes from Regular Board Meeting on March 27, 2024 AND Special Board Meeting on April 15, 2024 (p. 148)
b. Warrants and Expenditures (p. 155)
c. Interdistrict Transfers (new only; elementary students reapply annually).

i. Out
1. Hamilton Elementary School

a. K x 0
b. 1st x 0

2. Hamilton High School
a. 9TH x 0
b. 10TH x 0

ii. In
1. Hamilton Elementary School

a. K x 0
b. 6th x 0

2. Hamilton High School
a. 9th x 0

d. Personnel Actions as Presented:
i. New Hires: None 

ii. Resignations/Retirement/Release:
Ivan Barbontin Long Term Substitute Teacher,  effective end of day 6/7/2024 (Temporary Release, 
CA Ed Code 44954) HUSD 
Sera Alibrio Long Term Substitute Teacher,  effective end of day 5/15/2024 (Temporary Release, 
CA Ed Code 44954) HES 
Maria Palafox SPED Paraprofessional HHS 

15.0   ADJOURNMENT: 

Page 3 of 199



Technology Report 

Board Meeting on April 24th, 2024 

Frank James, Director of Technology 

Completed and in Progress Tasks  

• Completing Tech tickets and troubleshooting of any technical issues. 
 

• Working on extended warranties and remote access programs extension for all battery backups in each 
Network Distribution (IDF) building locations. 

 

• Working with admin staff on possibly locating all or most of the lost student Chromebooks. 
 

• We are continuing to work with HUSD Staff regarding Go Guardian updates for additional security and 
protection for students.  This includes reducing inappropriate use of Chromebooks and websites.  

 

• Built a new digital shared form for Chromebook tracking for any daily student barrowed devices.  
 

• Adjusted Virtual Server space to accommodate the HUSD’s needs.  
 

• Working on all tech renewals for the upcoming 24-25 school year. 
 

• Working on E-Rate projects and documents for 24-25 School Year. 
o Possible additional WIFI upgrades  
o Equipment maintenance, software and hardware upgrades along with support and protection 

plans. 
o Ongoing Professional Development Plans for Tech trainings. 

 

• District wide:  Setting up new devices for staff and updating tech in classrooms and offices.  

Page 4 of 199



NUTRTION SERVICE REPORT 
HUSD 

ERENDIDA MORENO 
BOARD MEETING 

APRIL 24, 2024 
 

Meal Service Claims have been submitted for March/2024. 

There were 19 days of meal service.  

Total district meals served:  

• Breakfast: 7,100 

• Lunch: 8,728 

• Supper: 2,328 

• Snack: 774 

ADP for the Elementary Site: 

• Breakfast: 222 

• Lunch: 323 

• Supper: 123 

• Snack: 41 

ADP for High School site: 

• Breakfast: 153 

• Lunch: 137 

Net Claim Reimbursement totals for all programs is $84,167.14 

Compared to February there has been an increase in lunch and supper 

participation. Breakfast participation declined a little.  

Our Walk-in Cooler has been installed during Spring Break. I am presenting a 

quote for a new Convection Oven for the High School Kitchen. With Board 

approval this item will be purchased under our ’22 KIT Funds. 

Page 5 of 199



MOT April 2024 

 

Maintenance:  

• Spring break allowed the staff to enjoy a few needed days off with friends and 

families. 

• The new district office door has been installed and wrapped.  

• We are working to keep up with weeds and grass as the wet spring is making 

them grow. 

• The baseball and softball fields are being worked on and raised to eliminate 

the standing water issues that caused many cancelations last season. 

• These fields are set up for high school games as well as little league beginning 

to use the JV field.  

• Planning continues for upcoming summer projects, both annual and needed 

repairs.  

Operations:  

• The janitorial staff continues to clean as scheduled. We are still covering as 

needed when someone is pull off to drive an event. 

• We have set up and cleaned for special events, including a high school open 

house and an elementary awards ceremony.  

• Elementary restrooms are being kept open later in the day as we are seeing 

heavy use from spring sports and an increase of children in the after school 

program.  

• We are implementing a few changes in individual cleaning routes as we strive 

to allow the B&G rooms to be covered by special funding, and allow us to 

retain the staffing that we have.  

• We are beginning our order of cleaning supplies that will be used over the 

summer.  

 

Transportation: 

• April and May always see heavy transportation requests. We are seeing 

many field trips, campus tours and special events added to the calendar 

• We continue to provide regular bus routes to Orland, Capay and Ord Bend.  

• We are transporting baseball, softball and track. 

• Vans are also being used for these events, as well as elementary soccer and 

track. 

• We have had a few repairs made to the buses, correcting issues caused by 

normal wear and tear.  

Page 6 of 199



HAMILTON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL
Wednesday, April 25, 2024

Submitted by

Ulises Tellechea, Principal

Grade Percentage Grade Percentage

TK TK –90.71% 5 5 – 97.36%

K K –96.80% 6 6 – 94.16%

1 1 – 94.96% 7 7 – 96.94%

2 2 – 97.81% 8 8 – 95.71%

3 3 – 95.47% Enrollment: 405

Updated 04/16/244 4 – 96.67%

HES staff and students came back from spring break with a bounce in their step and big smiles!
The break was needed and now we are ready to begin the home stretch to the end of the year.
We came back to a fun filled Monday for everyone: K-2 students went to see 123 Andres at
Laxson Auditorium and all of the students received a pair of glasses for the opportunity to see
the solar eclipse. On Friday, April 12, we had a school wide awards assembly. Over 300 awards
were issued that day (Attendance, Accelerated Reader, GPA, Character). We also recognized
Mrs. Alvarez for being selected as an Outstanding Cooperating Teacher by Chico State Education
Department. Mrs. Alvarez does a great job of mentoring student teachers! At the assembly, we
got to use our new sound system and it worked awesome! To conclude, HES has four athletic
teams competing this spring (Boys Soccer, Girls Soccer, Track and Field, and Girls on the Run). It
is great to see so many students after school participating in extracurricular activities!

Instructional news:
● CAASPP/State Testing starts on Monday, April 22 and runs through Friday, May 10th.
● The last round of K-5 intervention will continue through May 24th.

Campus News:
● ASB

○ ASB hosted the last dance of the year on Friday, April 12.
○ An Earth Day themed spirit week took place on Monday, April 15-19.

● PBIS and CKH
○ We raffled 9 big ticket items at the last awards assembly. Students used Wolf

Bucks to buy raffle tickets. Students can earn Wolf Bucks by Being Safe,
Respectful and Responsible.

Page 7 of 199



● Athletics
○ Boy Soccer won their first match of the year. Great job players and Mrs. Quiroz!
○ Girls Soccer won their first match of the year. Great job players and Josie!
○ Track and Field will have their first competition in Paradise on Thursday, April 18.

Good luck Wolves and Mr. and Mrs. Nall!
○ On April 27, Eleven Lady Wolves will run at Butte College for the Girls on the Run

event. Buena Suerte ladies, Mrs . Larson and Mrs. Whittaker.
● Parents

○ HES is hosting a Campus Beautification event on April 20th. The event is for
parents, staff, students and community members.

○ PTO and HES are preparing for the May Festival. The event is scheduled for May
2nd at 5:30.

● Technology
○ Our new sound system in the cafeteria and the portable system are awesome!

They worked well for the assembly and the dance!
○ Thank you for responding to the tickets in a timely manner!

● Maintenance and Construction
○ We are looking forward to new projects being approved or started: Outdoor

Fitness equipment, large screen in the cafeteria, and the sound absorption
boards.

○ Thank you for being flexible and accommodating to our multiple transportation
needs!

○ Maintenance is responding in a timely manner to our everyday needs, thank you!

Page 8 of 199



Hamilton High School 
Board Report 

April 2024 
 
 

1. Enrollment- Hamilton High currently enjoys serving 310 students, which includes the 16 or so at EBHS.  
Attendance continues to be a focus and doing well at HHS as we near the end of the school year.  For 
‘24-25, we are estimating 75 students for the Class of 2028!   

2. Teacher Training- Since last board meeting, two HHS English teachers attended a CUE conference 
focused on Artificial Intelligence (AI) in education and its positive and negative effects.  Further, both 
teachers then presented to the HHS staff at our recent faculty meeting, which was instructive and 
helpful for our group.  I, along with the office staff, attended a GCOE sponsored Paraprofessional 
training workshops on April 13.  This was well run and focused on how non-certificated can better 
assist our students. 
With our CAASPP state testing window open, we will begin testing in English in the next week, followed 
by Math and then science.  We are changing the format for how we test from assembly style to 
classroom based and we hope this brings better affinity for the students and the material. 

3. School Athletics- Our Spring Sports teams recently are well underway and in league play, with softball 
off to a strong start this season.  Our JV baseball team participated in a short season owing to only a 
few JV teams at our level.  The Varsity baseball team is playing competitively as well with some 
important league games upcoming.  
The HHS Track & Field teams are performing masterfully in invitational competitions with several top-3 
finish for the teams (JV and Varsity) as well as many individual strong performances!  With our team 
not having a track, we travel to our meets and are able to do very well in these performances!  Please 
come out and support our Braves teams!  

4. School Activities- These months are heavy with school events and activities.  On April 11, we held our 
Open House and it was well attended with our guests able to speak with teachers, staff, and also win 
raffle prizes! 
Thank you to ASB President Hanne Porter for her great help that evening and to FFA for their host 
activities, including grilling some excellent snacks!   
Next week, April 27, we will hold the Prom in downtown Chico.  We have the FFA Banquet on May 6, 
followed by the Color Dance on May 10 on the outdoor basketball courts- our first time holding such 
an event! 
The Glenn County Fair is being held on May 13-19, with nearly 70 student livestock projects ready for 
fair.  We will have a number of ag mechanics and art projects as well representing Hamilton High. 

5. May 23 is Senior Project Presentations and we will need community judges for the event.  This is an 
HUSD graduation requirement.  

6. Go Braves! 
 
 
 

Cris Oseguera 

Principal 
 

Page 9 of 199



Hamilton Adult Education 

Board Meeting Report-April, 2024 

Silvia Robles 

 
Completed and in Progress Tasks – April, 2024 

1. Total enrollment and students served to date for all programs: 209 

2. Attend monthly outreach meetings and recruit with non-profit organizations, local 
businesses, and employers. 

3. Attend regular WIOA II network monthly meetings and trainings.  

4. Follow up with phone calls to students for the 3rd quarter Employment and Earnings 
Survey. 
 

5. Due to weather conditions last month, Forklift Training was rescheduled to April 6th 
and successfully completed ¾ of the participants signed up. Carry overs will complete 
in May and June.  

 
6. Forklift Certification Training for April is full, and registration is ongoing for May and 

June.  
 

7. Work is in progress for the agency’s annual citizenship recertification.  
 

8. Implementation Survey for the Adult and Family Literacy Act (AEFLA) has been completed. 

 

 

 

Page 10 of 199



Hamilton Unified School District

General Fund - Unrestricted and Restricted

April 24, 2024 Board Report

2023-24 2023-24 2022-23 2022-23

Second Interim Year To Date Second Interim Year To Date

Budget As of 4/15/24 Budget As of 4/15/23

Revenues

LCFF Sources 10,792,910$   7,727,746$     9,722,613$     6,127,519$     

All Other Federal Revenue 609,154$        408,589$        1,230,881$     683,453$        

Other State Revenue 1,648,809$     1,276,822$     2,898,262$     2,278,954$     

Other Local Revenue 100,368$        171,721$        144,545$        115,644$        

Other Financing Sources -$                 -$                 31,017$          31,016$           

Total Revenues 13,151,241$   9,584,878$     14,027,318$   9,236,586$     

Expenditures

Certificated Personnel Salaries 4,385,195$     3,200,845$     3,857,061$     2,821,936$     

Classified Personnel Salaries 1,665,864$     1,242,486$     1,436,060$     1,078,631$     

Employee Benefits 2,600,228$     1,957,292$     2,230,746$     1,659,943$     

Books and Supplies 673,285$        427,213$        666,335$        394,394$        

Travel and Conferences 159,038$        72,660$           170,550$        97,296$           

Dues and Memberships 19,836$          19,450$           17,150$          17,665$           

Other Insurance 174,631$        183,899$        112,347$        112,347$        

All Other Utilities 330,000$        263,715$        273,000$        294,490$        

Rents/Leases/Repairs 109,250$        111,399$        79,100$          62,306$           

Other Operating Expenditures 546,512$        416,083$        455,130$        306,656$        

Capital Outlay 453,448$        369,039$        407,475$        299,177$        

Other Outgo 1,642,192$     321,416$        1,436,861$     330,857$        

Interfund Transfers Out 525,000$        -$                 103,401$        -$                 

Total Expenditures 13,284,479$   8,585,497$     11,245,216$   7,475,698$     

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund (133,238)$       999,381$        2,782,102$     1,760,888$     

Beginning Fund Balance 7/1/23 from 22/23 Unaudited 

Actuals as of 6/30/23
5,695,174$     

Projected Ending Fund Balance 6/30/24 5,561,936$     

Page 11 of 199



HUSD Superintendent Report

Board Meeting on April 24, 2024

Jeremy Powell, Ed. D.

Target Goals created by District Cabinet:

● Focus on Dual Immersion-Bilingual/Biliterate/Bicultural

● All students at Standard and Achievement Gap Closed

● Graduates who are College and Career Ready

Athletics, State Assessments, and Planning for the end of the year are all signs of a busy Spring
throughout Hamilton Unified. As we look ahead, the end of this school year will be filled with
exciting opportunities and celebrations!

District Highlights for February & March:

● The District is continuing to develop both our Strategic Plan and LCAP simultaneously.

The goal is to provide a roadmap for the District to follow in the coming years. This has

been accomplished through a collaborative process and focused on allowing all voices to

be heard.

● Our various ELOP Projects are moving along very well! I will update these when

discussing our Strategic Planning and LCAP.

● In the last two weeks, we have had both our Architect (Eagle Articted) and our Civil

Engineer (Russ Erickson) out to the potential site of our Turf Field and all Weather Track.

I will provide updates in the coming weeks!

● Senior Projects will be held May 23rd throughout the HHS campus. If you are interested

in being on a panel to review the projects, please contact Cristina Rios at HHS ASAP!

● Hamilton High School FFA continues to shine on a statewide, and beyond, scale! From

Northern to Central California and beyond our FFA students are representing Hamilton

City and the region in a powerful way!

Upcoming District Events:

● 5/6: Bond Oversight @ 5:30 in the HHS Library
● 5/2: HES May Dance Festival
● 5/10: HULC @ 2:15-3:15
● 5/15-17: Glenn County Fair Min. days at HHS
● 5/23: HHS Senior Project Presentation @ 6:00
● 5/23: HHS Awards Ceremony @ HHS Cafeteria
● 5/22: Regular School Board Meeting @ 5:30
● 6/6: Jr. High Graduation @HHS Stadium
● 6/7: High School Graduation @HHS Stadium

Page 12 of 199



HUSD ENROLLMENT OVER SIX YEARS

2018-2024

286 HHS 265 HHS 295 HHS 288 HHS 288 HHS 295 HHS

9 EBHS 13 EBHS 11 EBHS 10 EBHS 20 EBHS 17 EBHS

292 K-5 272 K-5 269 K-5 260 K-5 265 K-5 267 K-5

125 6-8 153 6-8 146 6-8 149 6-8 129 6-8 139 6-8

712 ENROLLMENT 703 ENROLLMENT 723 ENROLLMENT 707 ENROLLMENT 702 ENROLLMENT 718 ENROLLMENT

687.87 ADA 668.36 ADA 686.28 ADA 658.76 ADA 658.76 ADA 691.08 ADA

Enrollment and ADA totals above are based on P2 Data Reporting except current year based on current reporting

5

2022-232021-222020-212019-202018-19

1 2 3 4 6

2023-24

712

703

723

707
702

718

687.87

668.36

686.28

658.76 658.76

691.08

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24

D
is

tr
ic

t 
En

ro
llm

e
n

t 
&

 A
D

A

Enrollment  ADA

Enrollment & ADA by School Year

Page 13 of 199



HUSD ENROLLMENT OVER SIX YEARS

2018-2024

#STU GRADE #STU GRADE #STU GRADE #STU GRADE #STU GRADE

10 TK 10 TK 9.64 10 TK 9.48 10 TK 9.62 10 TK 9.58

29 K 29 K 28.5 29 K 28.39 30 K 28.52 29 K 28.42

34 1 34 1 32.36 34 1 32.61 34 1 32.60 34 1 32.64

49 2 49 2 46.93 50 2 47.48 50 2 47.77 50 2 47.80

51 3 51 3 48.79 51 3 49.06 51 3 49.40 51 3 49.32

45 4 45 4 43.86 46 4 44.21 46 4 44.29 46 4 44.29

47 5 47 5 45.5 47 5 45.42 47 5 45.31 47 5 45.32

43 6 43 6 42.39 43 6 41.85 43 6 41.77 44 6 41.91

41 7 41 7 40.30 41 7 40.12 41 7 40.15 41 7 40.11

54 8 54 8 52.52 54 8 51.97 54 8 52.04 54 8 52.14

71 9 71 9 69.43 71 9 68.55 71 9 67.79 71 9 67.42

100 10 100 10 92.06 96 10 92.88 98 10 94.63 97 10 93.93

64 11 64 11 62.5 64 11 61.79 64 11 61.42 64 11 60.62

81 12 81 12 76.3 81 12 76.49 80 12 76.06 79 12 75.60

719 TOTAL 719 TOTAL 691.08 717 TOTAL 690.30 719 TOTAL 691.37 717 TOTAL 689.10

#STU GRADE #STU GRADE #STU GRADE #STU GRADE #STU GRADE

10 TK 9.53 10 TK 9.53 10 TK 9.5 10 TK 9.51 10 TK 9.47

29 K 28.11 28 K 28.03 25 K 27.87 29 K 27.66 29 K 27.70

34 1 32.49 33 1 32.41 34 1 32.36 34 1 32.41 34 1 32.40

50 2 47.79 50 2 47.6 49 2 47.38 49 2 47.28 49 2 47.35

51 3 49.11 51 3 49.03 51 3 48.85 52 3 49.01 52 3 49.07

46 4 44.15 46 4 43.94 45 4 43.83 45 4 43.71 45 4 43.69

47 5 45.3 47 5 45.21 46 5 45.04 46 5 44.85 46 5 44.84

44 6 41.81 44 6 41.7 44 6 41.48 44 6 41.65 44 6 41.61

41 7 40.02 40 7 37.70 40 7 38.31 41 7 38.63 41 7 38.80

54 8 52.05 54 8 51.04 55 8 52.05 55 8 52.22 55 8 52.30

71 9 67.08 71 9 66.97 70 9 66.14 72 9 67.08 72 9 67.02

96 10 91.71 98 10 92.95 97 10 92.78 97 10 93.29 97 10 93.39

63 11 59.97 63 11 59.47 62 11 59.61 62 11 59.12 62 11 58.77

79 12 75.84 80 12 73.81 79 12 75.14 79 12 74.59 79 12 74.52

715 TOTAL 684.96 715 TOTAL 679.39 707 TOTAL 680.34 715 TOTAL 681.01 715 TOTAL 680.93

ADA2/19/24-3/15/24

2023-24

9/4/23-9/29/23
ADA

1/22/24-2/16/24

2023-24

10/30/23-11/24/23ADA

ADA

2023-24

ADA

2023-24

10/2/23-10/27/23ADA

2023-24

2023-24 2023-24

11/27/23-12/22/23 12/25/23-01/19/24

2023-24

8/7/2023

2023-24

8/7-9/01/23

ADA

2023-24

ADA

Page 14 of 199



 Building Fund 21 (Bond) Expenditures for 2023-24

For April 24, 2024 HUSD Board Meeting

Total Expenditures through April 12, 2024

PO # Date Vendor Description Amount

PO24-00076 7/12/2023 Bank of New York Mellon Paying Agent Fee; RE: Election of 2018, GO Bonds, Series A 750.00$                

PO24-00365 11/15/2023 Twin Builders HES Trash Enclosure project 81,121.00$           

PO23-00230 2/7/2024 A-Line Facility Master Plan 6,850.00$             

PO23-00225 2/7/2024 A-Line Elementary School Restroom and Trash projects 6,026.65$             

Total expenditures through 4/12/24 94,747.65$          

Page 15 of 199



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

Agenda Item Number: 13.c Date: 04/24/24 

Agenda Item Description: 
Authorize four 10-hour day work weeks for administrative assistants June through August 2024. 

Background: 
In previous summers the administrative assistants/confidential employees that work summer and non-
student work weeks have had the HUSD Board approve the option for them to work four ten-hour work 
weeks June through August instead of the traditional five eight-hour days during the rest of the school 
year. 
 
If approved, each employee will work closely with their immediate supervisor to create a work schedule 
that will maximize productivity without impact to the students and families that we serve. 

Status: 
Pending board approval 

Fiscal Impact: 
None 

Educational Impact: 
n/a 

Recommendation: 
Recommend board authorize four 10-hour day work weeks for administrative assistants June through 
August 2024. 

 

Page 16 of 199



Page 17 of 199



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Agenda Item Number:  13 d Date:  4/24/2024 

Agenda Item Description: 2022-23 Measure F Bond Building Fund Audit Report. 

Background:  In 2000, California voters passed Proposition 39, which amended Article XIII of the 
California Constitution to require each school district that passes a general obligation bond under 55 
percent majority rule to conduct two independent annual audits. One audit examines finances; while the 
other focuses on the performance of the bond program to ensure that general obligation bond money 
was expended appropriately on the specific projects listed during the election campaign. 

The auditors believe the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position 
of the Measure F Bond Building Fund of Hamilton Unified School District, as of June 30, 2023. 

The auditors also believe Hamilton Unified School District complied, in all material respects, with the 
types of compliance requirements for a performance audit that are applicable to the Measure F Bond 
Building Fund for the year ended June 30, 2023. 

There were no financial statement findings or performance audit findings for 2022-23. 

The 2022-23 Measure F Bond Building Fund Audit Report will be given to the Citizens’ Bond Oversight 
Committee. 

The independent financial and performance audits should be submitted each year to the Citizens’ Bond 
Oversight Committee by March 31.  This audit was completed later than normal due to the GCOE 
cyberattack in May 2022. 

Status:  Pending board approval. 

Fiscal Impact:  There were no financial statement audit findings.  As a result, there was no fiscal impact. 

Educational Impact:  The effective management of the District’s resources allows our students a safe, 
rigorous, and engaging educational experience that promotes student academic success, respect, and 
citizenship in a caring environment. 

Recommendation:  Recommend board approve the 2022-23 Measure F Bond Building Fund Audit 
Report. 

Page 18 of 199



O: 619-270-8222   
F: 619-260-9085
christywhite.com

348 Olive Street
San Diego, CA 
92103

Certified Public Accountants serving 
K-12 School Districts and Charter
Schools throughout California

March 28, 2024 

Board of Trustees 

Hamilton Unified School District 

Hamilton City, California 

We have audited the financial statements of the Measure F Bond Building Fund of the Hamilton Unified School District 

(the “District”) for the year ended June 30, 2023. Professional standards require that we provide you with information 

about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards (and, if applicable, Government Auditing 

Standards and the Uniform Guidance), as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our 

audit. We have communicated such information in our letter to you dated February 4, 2020. Professional standards 

also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit. 

Significant Audit Matters 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices  

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant accounting 

policies used by the District are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. No new accounting policies were 

adopted, and the application of existing policies was not changed during 2023. We noted no transactions entered into 

by the District during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant 

transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period. 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit  

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit. 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements  

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, other 

than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Management has 

corrected all such misstatements. In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and 

corrected by management were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to each opinion unit’s financial 

statements taken as a whole.  

Disagreements with Management  

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, 

whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. 

We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 

Management Representations  

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management representation 

letter dated March 28, 2024. 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters, 

similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an accounting 

principle to the District’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed 

on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that 

the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. 

Page 19 of 199



 

 

Significant Audit Matters (continued) 

 

Other Audit Findings or Issues  

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, 

with management each year prior to retention as the District’s auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the 

normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention. 

 

Restriction on Use 

 

This information is intended solely for the information and use of Board of Education and management of the District 

and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

 

 

Very truly yours, 

 

 

 

 

Christy White, Inc. 

San Diego, California 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 20 of 199



Page 21 of 199



Page 22 of 199



Page 23 of 199



Page 24 of 199



Page 25 of 199



Page 26 of 199



Page 27 of 199



Page 28 of 199



Page 29 of 199



Page 30 of 199



Page 31 of 199



Page 32 of 199



Page 33 of 199



Page 34 of 199



Page 35 of 199



Page 36 of 199



Page 37 of 199



Page 38 of 199



Page 39 of 199



Page 40 of 199



Page 41 of 199



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

Agenda Item Number:  13 e Date: 4/24/2024 

Agenda Item Description: 

Approval of June 30, 2023 Audit Report 

Background:  

An annual independent financial audit is required of all K-12 local educational agencies in California.  

Audits of the prior fiscal year must be filed with the California Department of Education, the State 

Controller’s Office, and the local County Superintendent by December 15 each year.  Due to the GCOE 

cyberattack, the audit deadline was extended to March 31, 2024.  The 2022-23 independent audit is 

being brought to the April board meeting for approval.  The auditors believe the financial statements 

present fairly, in all material aspects, the financial position of the district as of June 30, 2023.  There are 

no audit findings. 

Status: Pending board approval. 

Fiscal Impact: There were no financial statement audit findings thus no financial impact. 

Educational Impact:  The effective management of the District’s resources allows our students a safe, 

rigorous, and engaging educational experience that promotes student academic success, respect, and 

citizenship in a caring environment. 

Recommendation: Recommend board approve the June 30, 2023 Audit Report. 

 

 

Page 42 of 199



O: 619-270-8222   
F: 619-260-9085
christywhite.com

348 Olive Street
San Diego, CA 
92103

Certified Public Accountants serving 
K-12 School Districts and Charter
Schools throughout California

March 27, 2024 

Board of Education 

Hamilton Unified School District 

Hamilton City, California 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the major fund, and the aggregate 

remaining fund information of Hamilton Unified School District for the year ended June 30, 2023. Professional 

standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing 

standards (and, if applicable, Government Auditing Standards and the Uniform Guidance), as well as certain 

information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our 

letter to you dated February 4, 2020.  Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following 

information related to our audit. 

Significant Audit Matters 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices  

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant accounting 

policies used by Hamilton Unified School District are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. No new 

accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during 2023. We noted 

no transactions entered into by Hamilton Unified School District during the year for which there is a lack of 

authoritative guidance or consensus.  All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in 

the proper period. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on 

management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. 

Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and 

because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most 

sensitive estimate(s) affecting the financial statements were:  

Management’s estimate of depreciation of capital assets is based on historical estimates of each 

capitalized item’s useful life. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the 

depreciation of capital assets in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial 

statements taken as a whole.  

Management’s estimate of the net pension liability and related deferred outflows of resources and 

deferred inflows of resources are based on actuarial valuations and pension contributions made 

during the year. We evaluated the key factors, assumptions, and proportionate share calculations 

used to develop the net pension liability and related deferred outflows of resources and deferred 

inflows of resources in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken 

as a whole.  

Management’s estimate of total other postemployment benefits (OPEB) obligation is based on an 

actuarial valuation.  We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the total OPEB 

obligation in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

Page 43 of 199



 

 

Significant Audit Matters (continued) 

 

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial statement 

users. The most sensitive disclosure(s) affecting the financial statements were:   

 

The disclosure of capital assets in Note 4 to the financial statements is based on historical 

information which could differ from actual useful lives of each capitalized item.  

 

The disclosure of the pension plans, net pension liability and related deferred outflows of resources 

and deferred inflows of resources in Note 11 to the financial statements represents management’s 

estimates based on actuarial valuations and pension contributions made during the year.  Actual 

results could differ depending on the key factors, and assumptions and proportionate share 

calculations used to develop the net pension liability and related deferred outflows of resources and 

deferred inflows of resources.  

 

The disclosure of other postemployment benefits and the total OPEB obligation in Note 10 to the 

financial statements represents management’s estimate based on an actuarial valuation. Actual 

results could differ depending on the key factors and assumptions used for the actuarial valuation. 

 

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 

 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit  

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit. 

 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements  

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, 

other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. 

Management has corrected all such misstatements. In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a result of 

audit procedures and corrected by management were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to each 

opinion unit’s financial statements taken as a whole.  

 

Disagreements with Management  

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, 

whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s 

report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 

 

Management Representations  

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management representation 

letter dated March 27, 2024. 

 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants   

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters, 

similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an accounting 

principle to Hamilton Unified School District’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion 

that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check 

with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such 

consultations with other accountants. 

 

Other Audit Findings or Issues  

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, 

with management each year prior to retention as Hamilton Unified School District’s auditors. However, these 

discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition 

to our retention. 

  

Page 44 of 199



Other Matters 

We applied certain limited procedures to management’s discussion and analysis, and the required supplementary 

information section, which are required supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial 

statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the 

information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic 

financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did 

not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.  

We were engaged to report on the supplementary information, which accompany the financial statements but are 

not RSI. With respect to this supplementary information, we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated 

the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that the information complies with 

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not 

changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the 

financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting 

records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.  

Restriction on Use 

This information is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Education and management of 

Hamilton Unified School District and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these 

specified parties. 

Very truly yours, 

Christy White, Inc. 

San Diego, California 

Page 45 of 199



Page 46 of 199



Page 47 of 199



Page 48 of 199



Page 49 of 199



Page 50 of 199



Page 51 of 199



Page 52 of 199



Page 53 of 199



Page 54 of 199



Page 55 of 199



Page 56 of 199



Page 57 of 199



Page 58 of 199



Page 59 of 199



Page 60 of 199



Page 61 of 199



Page 62 of 199



Page 63 of 199



Page 64 of 199



Page 65 of 199



Page 66 of 199



Page 67 of 199



Page 68 of 199



Page 69 of 199



Page 70 of 199



Page 71 of 199



Page 72 of 199



Page 73 of 199



Page 74 of 199



Page 75 of 199



Page 76 of 199



Page 77 of 199



Page 78 of 199



Page 79 of 199



Page 80 of 199



Page 81 of 199



Page 82 of 199



Page 83 of 199



Page 84 of 199



Page 85 of 199



Page 86 of 199



Page 87 of 199



Page 88 of 199



Page 89 of 199



Page 90 of 199



Page 91 of 199



Page 92 of 199



Page 93 of 199



Page 94 of 199



Page 95 of 199



Page 96 of 199



Page 97 of 199



Page 98 of 199



Page 99 of 199



Page 100 of 199



Page 101 of 199



Page 102 of 199



Page 103 of 199



Page 104 of 199



Page 105 of 199



Page 106 of 199



Page 107 of 199



Page 108 of 199



Page 109 of 199



Page 110 of 199



Page 111 of 199



Page 112 of 199



Page 113 of 199



Page 114 of 199



Page 115 of 199



Page 116 of 199



Page 117 of 199



Page 118 of 199



Page 119 of 199



Page 120 of 199



Page 121 of 199



Page 122 of 199



Page 123 of 199



Page 124 of 199



Page 125 of 199



Page 126 of 199



Page 127 of 199



Page 128 of 199



Page 129 of 199



Page 130 of 199



Page 131 of 199



Page 132 of 199



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

Agenda Item Number: 13 f Date: 04/24/2024 

Agenda Item Description: 
Revise of previous board approved HES location Outdoor Fitness Exercise Equipment - to support 
afterschool and extended day programs. 

Background: 
 
This revision is for a previous board approved plan for the HES Outdoor Fitness Exercise project that has 
been adjusted to add the required fall protection surfacing, ground work preparation, and the change to 
a Glenn County recommended contractor.  All equipment will be sourced and installed by one contractor 
for the full project and can be completed by the June 30th deadline.  
 
All estimated costs below include: Materials, Labor, Shipping, and Tax.  

❖ Previous approved amount did not include: fall surface protection or ground work preparation 
 - $68,337.06 
 

❖ NEW: Outdoor Exercise Equipment, Fall protection & Installation – Estimated cost not to exceed  
- $89,466.66 

• 2-Person Pull-Up Station  

• 2-Person Vertical Press  

• 2-Person Lat Pull  

• 2-Person Chest Press 

• Balancing Plate 

• Upright Bike (With Resistance) In-Ground 

• Elliptical Cross Trainer 

• 2-Person Incline Sit-Up Benches 

• Equipment installation  

• Shredded Rubber Fall Protection Surfacing 

• Ground Preparation 

• Area Border Installation  

Status: 
Pending Board Approval 

Fiscal Impact: 
Total estimated cost of $89,466.66, covered by ELOP funds.  

Educational Impact: 
Provides a social and fitness experience during afterschool extended learning opportunities. Advantages 
include: Physical and mental health benefits, motivational engagement, social interaction, teamwork, 
connection with nature, accessibility to fitness equipment, and the promotion of lifelong habits.  

Recommendation: 
Recommend the Board to authorize ELOP funded upgrades for the HES Outdoor Fitness Exercise 
Equipment. 

 

Page 133 of 199



PACIFIC 
AI..AYGRDU D 

lfm Tilfl.!J 

Ll 

□F

Existing Playground

Existing Fence

Existing Solar Panel Cover

SCALE: 1/12" = 1' 0" 

Distance from 
overhang to 
fence

2 Person 
Chest Press

Upright Bike
2 Person Incline 
Sit-Up Benches

Distance from center 
of Solar Panel Cover
to fence

Shredded Rubber 6" Depth

Wooden Border
Surrounding Shredded Rubber 
2" X 8"

F
IT

N
E

S
S

 A
R

E
A

H
am

ilt
on

 U
ni

fi
ed

 S
ch

oo
l D

is
tr

ic
t

2
7

7
 C

ap
ay

 A
ve

, 
H

am
ilt

on
 C

it
y,

 C
A

 9
5

9
5

1

Filter cloth beneath 
shredded rubber

2 Person 
Vertical Press

2 Person 
Lat Pull Up

Balancing 
Plate

2 Person 
Pull Up Station

Elliptical 
Cross Trainer

Page 134 of 199

doug gourley
Distance Measurement
11.66 ft�

doug gourley
Distance Measurement
2.33 ft�

doug gourley
Oval

doug gourley
Polygonal Line

doug gourley
Distance Measurement
26.56 ft�

doug gourley
Distance Measurement
2.33 ft

doug gourley
Oval

doug gourley
Distance Measurement
27.00 ft�

doug gourley
Oval

doug gourley
Distance Measurement
2.33 ft

doug gourley
Distance Measurement
17.00 ft�

doug gourley
Oval

doug gourley
Distance Measurement
2.33 ft

doug gourley
Line

doug gourley
Distance Measurement
27.00 ft�

doug gourley
Distance Measurement
40.00 ft�

doug gourley
Distance Measurement
20.00 ft�

doug gourley
Rectangle

doug gourley
Distance Measurement
2.33 ft

doug gourley
Oval

doug gourley
Rectangle

doug gourley
Distance Measurement
12.00 ft�

doug gourley
Line

doug gourley
Distance Measurement
32.00 ft�

doug gourley
Distance Measurement
16.00 ft�

doug gourley
Line

doug gourley
Line

doug gourley
Line

doug gourley
Rectangle

doug gourley
Line

doug gourley
Rectangle

doug gourley
Line

doug gourley
Line

doug gourley
Rectangle

doug gourley
Line

doug gourley
Line

doug gourley
Line

doug gourley
Line

doug gourley
Line

doug gourley
Line

doug gourley
Line

doug gourley
Line

doug gourley
Distance Measurement
102.00 ft



 

Functions: 

Contract #: GS03F086GA

© 2022 Greenfields Outdoor FitnessIn order to honor our commitment to quality and safety, Greenfields Outdoor Fitness reserves the right to make changes and revise the design specifications without notice. 

(888) 315-9037  |    greenfieldsfitness.com

Greenfields’ military line is:

HOT-DIP GALVANIZED STAINLESS STEEL HARDWARECUSTOM POWDER COATED

Used by all branches of the
U.S. Armed Forces worldwide

Proudly MADE IN THE USA

Greenfields’ military line is:

HOT-DIP GALVANIZED STAINLESS STEEL HARDWARECUSTOM POWDER COATED

Used by all branches of the
U.S. Armed Forces worldwide

Proudly MADE IN THE USA

Powder Coating Colors:
Custom colors available - call for details

GREEN TAN BLUE GOLD BLACK RED

SPECS

Target Muscles
Secondary Muscles

2-PERSON PULL-UP STATION
MT009

• Chin-ups
• Pull-ups
• Shoulder shrugs
• Heel hooks
• Knee ups
• Leg raises
• Increased grip strength
• Toes to bar 

1
1
'
-
6
"

MODEL (MT2011-1-09)

This unit can be used by 2 people simultaneously.  
Aids in full body strengthening.

• Steel construction for unsurpassed longevity 
and durability

• Hot-dip galvanized after fabrication for inside 
and out coating of the steel 

• Custom color powder coating process 
for an additional layer of durability (color 
matching available)

• Stainless steel hardware
• Stands up to years of constant use in all 

environments 
• 25-year limited warranty
• Need it customized? We can help! Call us at 

888-315-9037. 

Meets FM7-22 Standard for Physical Readiness Training (PRT).

Pull-Up Bar Height is Customizable!

LU20x04x28

Page 135 of 199



®

™

TWO-PERSON VERTICAL PRESS 
SGR047

• Strengthens 
shoulder and 
arms muscles

greenfieldsfitness.com/two-per-
son-vertical-press-video.html

VIEW THE VIDEO

Target muscles
Secondary muscles

2-Person Vertical Press
SGR047
Greenfields Outdoor Fitness, Inc.

17'-2"

14'

© 2022 Greenfields Outdoor FitnessIn order to honor our commitment to quality and safety, Greenfields Outdoor Fitness reserves the right to make changes and revise the design specifications without notice. 
Greenfields’ units are designed to accommodate the majority of users age 14 and above; however, due to the nature of outdoor fitness equipment, units are “one size fits most”.

Page 136 of 199



®

™

TWO-PERSON LAT PULL 
SGR048

greenfieldsfitness.com/lat-
pulldown-video.html

VIEW THE VIDEO

2-Person Lat Pull
SGR048
Greenfields Outdoor Fitness, Inc.

13'-8"

17'-10"

Target muscles
Secondary muscles

Strengthens upper 
back, shoulders, 
biceps and core

© 2022 Greenfields Outdoor FitnessIn order to honor our commitment to quality and safety, Greenfields Outdoor Fitness reserves the right to make changes and revise the design specifications without notice. 
Greenfields’ units are designed to accommodate the majority of users age 14 and above; however, due to the nature of outdoor fitness equipment, units are “one size fits most”.

Page 137 of 199



®

TWO-PERSON CHEST PRESS
SGR048A

Strengthens chest, 
shoulders, upper and
mid abs, forearms 
and triceps

greenfieldsfitness.com/two-
person-chest-press-video.html

VIEW THE VIDEO

2-Person Chest Press
SGR048A
Greenfields Outdoor Fitness, Inc.

17'-2"

13'-2"

Target muscles
Secondary muscles

© 2022 Greenfields Outdoor FitnessIn order to honor our commitment to quality and safety, Greenfields Outdoor Fitness reserves the right to make changes and revise the design specifications without notice. 
Greenfields’ units are designed to accommodate the majority of users age 14 and above; however, due to the nature of outdoor fitness equipment, units are “one size fits most”.

Page 138 of 199



®

Target muscles
Secondary muscles

Strengthens:
• Core
• Quads
• Lower Back
• Calves

BALANCING PLATE 
UBX360

https://gfoutdoorfitness.com/balancing-plate/

VIEW THE VIDEO

Balancing Plate
UBX360
Greenfields Outdoor Fitness, Inc.

12'-8"

12'-8"

In order to honor our commitment to quality and safety, Greenfields Outdoor Fitness reserves the right to make changes and revise the design specifications without notice. 
Greenfields’ units are designed to accommodate the majority of users age 14 and above; however, due to the nature of outdoor fitness equipment, units are “one size fits most”. © 2018 Greenfields Outdoor Fitness

Page 139 of 199



®

ELLIPTICAL CROSS TRAINER
SHP503

• Strengthens leg
muscles

• Improves
cardiovascular
endurance

greenfieldsfitness.com/elliptical-
cross-trainer-video.html

VIEW THE VIDEO

Elliptical Cross Trainer
SHP503
Greenfields Outdoor Fitness, Inc.

16'-8"

12'-9"

Target muscles
Secondary muscles

© 2022 Greenfields Outdoor FitnessIn order to honor our commitment to quality and safety, Greenfields Outdoor Fitness reserves the right to make changes and revise the design specifications without notice. 
Greenfields’ units are designed to accommodate the majority of users age 14 and above; however, due to the nature of outdoor fitness equipment, units are “one size fits most”.

Page 140 of 199



®

™

greenfieldsfitness.com/two-person-sit-up-bench-video.html

VIEW THE 
VIDEO

TWO-PERSON INCLINE SIT-UP BENCHES  
SGR019

Target muscles
Secondary muscles

• Strengthens obliques 
and upper, mid and lower 
abdominals

• Can be used by two people 
simultaneously

2-Person Incline Sit-Up Benches
SGR019
Greenfields Outdoor Fitness, Inc.

13'-8"

18'-11"

© 2022 Greenfields Outdoor FitnessIn order to honor our commitment to quality and safety, Greenfields Outdoor Fitness reserves the right to make changes and revise the design specifications without notice. 
Greenfields’ units are designed to accommodate the majority of users age 14 and above; however, due to the nature of outdoor fitness equipment, units are “one size fits most”.

Page 141 of 199

https://greenfieldsfitness.com/two-person-sit-up-bench-video/


Page 142 of 199



* Unless noted otherwise, this statement does not reflect the cost or acquisition of any  permits.*

DOUG GOURLEY PLAYGROUND DESIGN INC. LIC #384458
462 Appian Way
El Sobrante, CA  94803
+1 5102437445
pacificplayground@gmail.com
www.pacificplayground.com

ADDRESS SHIP TO
Mike Watson
620 Canal Street, PO Box 488
Hamilton City, CA 95951

Mike Watson
277 Capay Ave, 
Hamilton City, CA 95951

Estimate 4547

DATE 04/04/2024 

 

PROJECT SITE LOCATION
Fitness Area - Shredded Rubber Hamilton City

PRODUCT/SERVICE DESCRIPTION QTY RATE AMOUNT

Project To provide and install materials for a new fitness area at 277 
Capay Ave. Hamilton City, CA 95951

*Prevailing Wage*

1 0.00 0.00

Equipment

SGR045-03K 2-Person Pull-Up Station 1 2,019.94 2,019.94

SGR047 2-Person Vertical Press 1 4,854.94 4,854.94

SGR048 2-Person Lat Pull 1 4,854.94 4,854.94

SGR048A-03 2-Person Chest Press 1 4,854.94 4,854.94

UBX360 Balancing Plate 1 2,526.19 2,526.19

UBX289-01 Upright Bike (With Resistance)
In-Ground

1 2,627.44 2,627.44

SHP503 Elliptical Cross Trainer 1 4,044.94 4,044.94

SGR019-03K 2-Person Incline Sit-Up Benches 1 3,538.68 3,538.68

Installation Equipment installation 1 21,987.00 21,987.00

Surfacing

Wooden Border 2x8 Redwood Border with 4x4 support posts w/ installation 236 32.00 7,552.00

FILTER FABRIC WEED/ FILTER CLOTH 1,632 0.90 1,468.80

shredded rubber Shredded rubber surfacing 6" depth for a 10' fall height 11 799.00 8,789.00

Shredded Rubber 
Installation

Shredded Rubber Installation 1,632 8.50 13,872.00

Travel Costs Overnight Travel Cost 1 2,400.00 2,400.00

Sales Tax Sales Tax 1 2,125.85 2,125.85

*An advance deposit is required before any order can be placed. 
If you have not received an invoice for your advance deposit 
please contact the office immediately.

SUBTOTAL 87,516.66

TAX 0.00

Page 143 of 199



* Unless noted otherwise, this statement does not reflect the cost or acquisition of any  permits.*

SHIPPING 1,950.00

TOTAL $89,466.66

Accepted By Accepted Date

Page 144 of 199



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Agenda Item Number:  Date: April 24, 2024 

Agenda Item Description: 
Approve NorCal Food Equipment Inc. expenditure for the Hamilton High School cafeteria. 

Background: 
In September 2021, AB167 was signed into law.  This law appropriated funding to the CDE to fund 
kitchen infrastructure upgrades and food service staff training.  School kitchen upgrades are intended to 
increase access to, or improve the quality of, fresh and nutritious school meals. 

The attached quote from NorCal Food Equipment Inc. is for the purchase of a Convection Oven for the 
Hamilton High School cafeteria. 

2021 KIT funds are fully spent after Walk-in cooler purchase. This purchase will be funded from our ’22 
KIT Funds.  

Status: 
Pending board approval. 

Fiscal Impact: 
This expenditure will be paid from our  2022 Kitchen Infrastructure and Training (KIT) funds.  The total 
cost is $17,293.92 

Educational Impact: 
Increase access to and improve the quality of, fresh and nutritious school meals. 

Recommendation: 
Recommend board to approve the NorCal Food Equipment Inc. expenditure for the Hamilton High School 
cafeteria. 

13 g

Page 145 of 199



Quote
04/10/2024

Merchandise $12,742.65
Installation $3,500.00
Tax 8.25% $1,051.27
Total $17,293.92

Project: From:
HSUD ‐ Convection Oven
Erendida Moreno
620 Canal Street
Hamilton City, CA 95951

NorCal Food Equipment Inc.
Gilberto Lopez
172 Commercial Ave.
Chico, CA 95973
530‐342‐9092 
530‐342‐9092 (Contact)

Job Reference Number: 10797

Item Qty Description Sell Total

2 1 ea CONVECTION OVEN, GAS $12,742.65
Vulcan      
Convection Oven, gas, double‐deck, standard depth, solid state
controls, electronic spark igniters, 60 minute timer, (5) nickel
plated racks per oven, stainless steel front, top, sides & 8"H legs,
stainless steel doors with windows, (2) 50,000 BTU, NSF, CSA Star,
CSA Flame, ENERGY STAR®

1 ea 1 year limited parts & labor warranty, standard
1 ea Gas type to be specified
1 ea (2) 120v/60/1‐ph, 15.4 amps total, (2) cords with plugs, standard
1 ea Gas manifold piping included with stacking kit to provide single

point gas connection
ITEM TOTAL: $12,742.65

 
    Customer: Before approving this quote please check and confirm all details and

specifications of the item(s) listed on the quote. This includes, but is not limited to: electrical, gas,
and size specifications. NorCal Restaurant Supply will not be held responsible for errors in

application after delivering the approved / specified item.
 

Note: NorCal Restaurant Supply and their manufacturers are not responsible for errors or
omissions due to vague or faulty specifications, or when an equipment schedule only has been

provided.
 

Credit Card Fee: For Visa, Mastercard, AMEX and/or all other major Credit Cards there will
be a 3% Financial Fee for amount that is $1,000 or over. To avoid Financial Fee, please pay by

cash or check.
 

Sell

$12,742.65

HSUD ‐ Convec on Oven
Ini al: ______

Page 1 of 2Page 146 of 199



Acceptance: Date:

Printed Name:

               
  *** ALL ORDERS ARE SUBJECT TO A 25% RE-STOCKING FEE ***

 
  Special Order Items are NON-REFUNDABLE.

 
  

Project Grand Total: $17,293.92

  

 

NorCal Food Equipment Inc. 04/10/2024

HSUD ‐ Convec on Oven
Ini al: ______

Page 2 of 2Page 147 of 199



 HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

Hamilton High School Library/Zoom/Facebook Live 
620 Canal Street, Hamilton City, CA 95951 

Wednesday, March 27, 2024 
www.husdschools.org  

 
5:30 p.m.  Public session for purposes of opening the meeting only  
5:30 p.m.  Closed session to discuss closed session items listed below (For Board Only) 
6:00 p.m. Reconvene to open session no later than 6:30 p.m.  

 

Hamilton Unified School District Board Meetings are open to the public. Please join the meeting by attending in 
person or via the livestream on Facebook Live on the District’s Facebook Group page or through the below Zoom 
link or dial by phone as listed below: 

 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/4968739639?pwd=RUw1Qk5hZFVNTHd3RVFuMm9tVDBCQT09  
 
Meeting ID: 496 873 9639 
Passcode: 123456789     
 
Dial by phone: 
        +1 669 900 6833 US  
Meeting ID: 496 873 9639 
Passcode: 123456789 

 
1.0 OPENING BUSINESS: 

a. Call to order and roll call at 5:30 pm. 
 

✓ Hubert “Wendell” Lower, President  ✓ Ray Odom 
✓ Genaro Reyes    Absent Rod Boone, Clerk 

         ✓        Gabriel Leal 
 

2.0 IDENTIFY CLOSED SESSION ITEMS: 
 

3.0 PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS: Public comment will be heard on any closed session items. The board 
may limit comments to no more than three minutes per speaker and 15 minutes per item. None. 

 
4.0 ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION: To consider qualified matters. 

a. Government Code Section 54957, Personnel Issue. To consider public employee, evaluation, reassignment, 
resignation, release, dismissal, or discipline of a classified and/or certificated employee. 

b. Government Code Section 54957.6, Labor Negotiations. To confer with the District’s Labor Negotiator, 
Superintendent Jeremy Powell regarding HTA and CSEA negotiations. 

c. Conference with labor Negotiator Gov. Code sec. 54957.6, subd. (a). Agency designated representative: Dr. 
Jeremy Powell; Employee Organization: Hamilton Teachers Association. 

d. Public Employee Performance Evaluation. Government Code section 54957, subdivision (b)(1). Superintendent. 
 
Report out action taken in closed session. Direction was given to the lead negotiator. 

 
5.0 PUBLIC SESSION/FLAG SALUTE:  lead by Nayeli Oseguera and Julia Simson. 

 

Page 148 of 199

http://www.husdschools.org/
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/4968739639?pwd=RUw1Qk5hZFVNTHd3RVFuMm9tVDBCQT09


 
6.0 ADOPT THE AGENDA: (M) 

 
7.0 COMMUNICATIONS/REPORTS: 

a. Board Member Comments/Reports 
i. Mr. Odom requested that the district investigate funding a school resource officer and bring that 

information back to a future board meeting. 
b. ASB President and Student Council President Reports 

i. Hamilton High School – Hanne Porter 
ii. Hamilton Elementary School – Dalila Barron-Martinez 

c. District Reports (written) 
i. Technology Report by Frank James (p. 4) 

ii. Nutrition Services Report by Erendida Moreno (p. 5) 
iii. Operations Report by Alan Joksch (handout) 

d. Principal and Dean of Student Reports (written) 
i. Ulises Tellechea, Hamilton Elementary School Principal (p. 6) 

1. Mr. Tellechea presented. 

ii. Maria Reyes, District Dean of Students (handout) 
iii. Cris Oseguera, Hamilton High School Principal (handout) 

1. Mr. Oseguera presented. 

iv. Silvia Robles, Adult School (p. 8) 
e. Chief Business Official Report by Kristen Hamman (written) (p. 9) 
f. Superintendent Report by Jeremy Powell (written) (p. 10) 

1. Dr. Powell presented. 

 
8.0  PRESENTATIONS: 

a. FFA/Ag Department by Janice Lohse (handout) 
i. Nayeli Oserguera and Julia Simson presented. 

ii. Janice Lohse presented. 
b. MOT Presentation (handout) 

i. Alan Joksch presented. 
 

9.0  CORRESPONDENCE: 
a. None 

 

10.0   INFORMATION ITEMS: 
a. HUSD Enrollment History for 6 years (p. 11) 

i. Dr. Powell reviewed. 
b. Bond Status: Fund 21 Update  (p. 13) 

i. Dr. Powell reviewed. 
c. LCAP/Strategic Planning (handout) 

i. Dr. Powell reviewed. 
d. Form 700 – annual statement of Economic interests – File Electronically with the Board of Supervisors by April 

1, 2024 (p. 14) 
i. Dr. Powell reviewed. 

e. Annual Spring Survey Findings (handout) 
i. Dr. Powell reviewed. 

f. Boys & Girls Camp Jamoa Schedule (p. 15) 
i. Dr. Powell reviewed. 

 

11.0   DISCUSSION ITEMS: 
a. Educator Hall of Fame (p. 23) 

i. Dr. Powell reviewed. 
 

Page 149 of 199



12.0   PUBLIC COMMENT: Public comment on any item of interest to the public that is within the Board’s jurisdiction will be 
heard (agenda and non-agenda items). The Board may limit comments to no more than three minutes per speaker and 
15 minutes per topic. Public comment will also be allowed on each specific action item prior to board action thereon. 

a. CSEA Vice President Dave Elkin spoke before the board. 
 

13.0   ACTION ITEMS: 
a. Approve District Calendar as presented (p. 25) 

Motion to approve District Calendar by Mr. Leal 2nd  by Mr. Reyes. Motion Carried 4-0 
Leal: AYE Lower: AYE 

Boone: Absent Reyes: AYE 

Odom: AYE  

 
b. Approve New District Logo (handout) 

i. Dr. Powell reviewed. 
ii. Motion to approve by Mr. Leal 2nd  by Mr. Reyes.  

Motion amended by Mr. Odom to include K-12 academics imagry and bring back to next board meeting 2nd by Mr. Leal 
Motion carried 4-0 

Leal: AYE Lower: AYE 

Boone: Absent Reyes: AYE 

Odom: AYE  

 
c. Approve School Site Safety Plans (full plans available on https://www.husdschools.org/ and available by 

request from the District Office): (p. 26) 
i. Dr. Powell reviewed. 

Motion to approve by Mr. Reyes 2nd  by Mr. Leal. Motion Carried 4-0 
Leal: AYE Lower: AYE 

Boone: Absent Reyes: AYE 

Odom: AYE  

 
d. Approve purchase of food trailer, Option 2 using CTEIG grant funds (p. 47) 

i. Dr. Powell reviewed. 
Motion to approve by Mr. Leal 2nd  by Mr. Odom. Motion Carried 4-0 

Leal: AYE Lower: AYE 

Boone: Absent Reyes: AYE 

Odom: AYE  

 
e. Approve the Postage Meter Mailing System Proposal with Advanced Document Concepts (p. 62) 

i. Ms. Hamman reviewed. 
Motion to approve by Mr. Reyes 2nd  by Mr. Leal. Motion Carried 4-0 

Leal: AYE Lower: AYE 

Boone: Absent Reyes: AYE 

Odom: AYE  

 

f. Approve Updated Extended Learning Opportunities Plan (ELOP) (p. 67) 
i. Dr. Powell reviewed. 

Motion to approve by Mr. Leal 2nd  by Mr. Reyes. Motion Carried 4-0 
Leal: AYE Lower: AYE 

Boone: Absent Reyes: AYE 

Odom: AYE  

 
 
 
 
 

Page 150 of 199

https://www.husdschools.org/


g. Authorize ELOP funded upgrades for the HES Power Retractable Projector System. (p. 80) 
i. Mr. Watson reviewed. 

Motion to approve by Mr. Reyes 2nd  by Mr. Leal. Motion Carried 4-0 
Leal: AYE Lower: AYE 

Boone: Absent Reyes: AYE 

Odom: AYE  

 
h. Authorize ELOP funds for additional camera equipment at the Hamilton Elementary School. (p. 84) 

i. Mr. Watson reviewed. 
Motion to approve by Mr. Reyes 2nd  by Mr. Leal. Motion Carried 4-0 

Leal: AYE Lower: AYE 

Boone: Absent Reyes: AYE 

Odom: AYE  

 
i. Authorize ELOP funded upgrades for the HES Acoustic Sound Treatment. (p. 87) 

i. Mr. Watson reviewed. 
Motion to approve by Mr. Reyes 2nd  by Mr. Odom. Motion Carried 4-0 

Leal: AYE Lower: AYE 

Boone: Absent Reyes: AYE 

Odom: AYE  

 
j. Approve A - Line Proposal for the Consulting services for the ELOP Funding Project. (p. 90) 

i. Julie Campos with A-Line reviwed. 
ii. Dr. Powell reviewed. 

Motion to approve by Mr. Leal 2nd  by Mr. Odom. Motion Carried 4-0 
Leal: AYE Lower: AYE 

Boone: Absent Reyes: AYE 

Odom: AYE  

 
k. Authorize ELOP funded Tennis Court Improvement Project (p. 94) 

i. Dr. Powell reviewed. 
Motion to approve by Mr. Reyes 2nd  by Mr. Leal. Motion Carried 4-0 

Leal: AYE Lower: AYE 

Boone: Absent Reyes: AYE 

Odom: AYE  

 
 

14.0   CONSENT AGENDA: Items in the consent agenda are considered routine and are acted upon by the Board in one 
motion.  There is no discussion of these items prior to the Board vote and unless a member of the Board, staff, or public 
request specific items be discussed and/or removed from the consent agenda. Each item on the consent agenda 
approved by the Board shall be deemed to have been considered in full and adopted as recommended. 

a. Minutes from Regular Board Meeting on February 28, 2024 and Special Board Meeting on March 13, 2024 (p. 
95) 

b. Warrants and Expenditures (p. 100) 
c. Interdistrict Transfers (new only; elementary students reapply annually). 

i. Out 
1. Hamilton Elementary School 

a. None 
2. Hamilton High School 

a. None 
ii. In 

1. Hamilton Elementary School 
a. None 

 

Page 151 of 199



2. Hamilton High School 
a. None 

 
d. Personnel Actions as Presented: 

i. New hires:                 None 
   

ii. Resignations/Retirement: Emily Powell         Long Term Substitute                          Preschool  
 

 Motion to approve consent agenda by Mr. Leal 2nd  by Mr. Odom Motion Carried 4-0 
Leal: AYE Lower: AYE 

Boone: Absent Reyes: AYE 

Odom: AYE  

   
 

    
 

15.0   ADJOURNMENT: 8:03 pm. 
 

 

      

X

Rod Boone

HUSD Board Clerk

                    

X

Jeremy Powell

HUSD Superintendent

 
 

Page 152 of 199



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

Hamilton High School Library/Zoom/Facebook Live 
620 Canal Street, Hamilton City, CA 95951 

Monday, April 15, 2024  

 
4:00 p.m.  Public session 

 

Hamilton Unified School District Board Meetings are open to the public. Please join the meeting by attending in 
person or via the livestream on Facebook Live on the District’s Facebook Group page or through the below Zoom 
link or dial by phone as listed below: 
 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84688330892?pwd=aGdCb1VRZFgyTURmeW5POUU5WHlVZz09 

 
Meeting ID: 846 8833 0892 
Passcode: board 
 
Dial in by phone: 
        +1 669 900 6833 US  
Meeting ID: 846 8833 0892 
Passcode: 826421 

 
1.0 OPENING BUSINESS: 

a. Call to order and roll call at 4:00 pm. 
 

✓  Hubert “Wendell” Lower, President  ✓ Ray Odom 
✓ Genaro Reyes    Absent Rod Boone, Clerk 

 ✓        Gabriel Leal 

 
 

2.0 ADOPT THE AGENDA: (M) 
Motion to adopt the agenda by Mr. Leal 2nd  by Mr. Reyes   Motion Carried 4-0 

Leal: AYE Lower: AYE 

Boone: Absent Reyes: AYE 

Odom: AYE  

 
 

3.0 PUBLIC COMMENT: Public comment on any item of interest to the public that is within the Board’s jurisdiction will be 
heard (agenda and non-agenda items). The Board may limit comments to no more than three minutes per speaker and 
15 minutes per topic. Public comment will also be allowed on each specific action item prior to board action thereon. 
None.  

 
4.0 ACTION ITEMS: 

a. Approval and acceptance of retirement of certificated employee,  Bertha Carter.  Effective retirement 
date: 6/30/24.  

Motion to approve and accept retirement by  Mr. Leal 2nd  by Mr. Odom. Motion Carried 4-0 
Leal: AYE Lower: AYE 

Boone: Absent Reyes: AYE 

Odom: AYE  

 
 

1.0   ADJOURNMENT: 4:02 pm. 
 

 

Page 153 of 199

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84688330892?pwd=aGdCb1VRZFgyTURmeW5POUU5WHlVZz09


 

      

X

Rod Boone

HUSD Board Clerk

                    

X

Jeremy Powell

HUSD Superintendent

 
                             

Page 154 of 199



Page 155 of 199



Page 156 of 199



Page 157 of 199



Page 158 of 199



Page 159 of 199



Page 160 of 199



Page 161 of 199



Page 162 of 199



Page 163 of 199



Page 164 of 199



Page 165 of 199



Page 166 of 199



Page 167 of 199



Page 168 of 199



Page 169 of 199



Page 170 of 199



Page 171 of 199



Page 172 of 199



Page 173 of 199



Page 174 of 199



Page 175 of 199



Page 176 of 199



Page 177 of 199



Page 178 of 199



Page 179 of 199



Page 180 of 199



Page 181 of 199



Page 182 of 199



Page 183 of 199



Page 184 of 199



Page 185 of 199



Page 186 of 199



Page 187 of 199



Page 188 of 199



Page 189 of 199



Page 190 of 199



Page 191 of 199



Page 192 of 199



Page 193 of 199



Page 194 of 199



Page 195 of 199



Page 196 of 199



Page 197 of 199



Page 198 of 199



Page 199 of 199


	13. f 1 HES Exercise Equipment Presentation & Quote - Fitness Area w Shredded Rubber.pdf
	Blank Page




